
 PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
 SPECIAL MEETING 
 TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held on 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL 
201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
 
I. Call to Order. 
 
    Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 2:45 p.m. 

 
II. Roll Call. 
 
  PRESENT:      ABSENT: 
  

 Mayor Wilson     None 
 Councilman Bell     
 Councilman Lamerson    
 Councilwoman Lopas  (arrived at 2:47 p.m.) 
 Councilman Luzius 
 Councilman Roecker (arrived at 2:47 p.m.) 
 Councilwoman Suttles (arrived at 2:47 p.m. 

 
III. Announcement of new business in the City of Prescott. 

   
 Economic Development Director Jane Bristol said that she had two new 

businesses to announce in the Prescott area. 
 
 She said that the first is a retail announcement. She said that there are several 

vacant spaces around town and to make an announcement on who would 
occupy one of the larger spaces was Mark Steinbrook of Westcor in the Prescott 
Gateway Mall. 

     
 Mr. Steinbrook said that on behalf of Westcor and everyone at the Mall, they 

were very excited to announce that Bed, Bath and Beyond would be joining their 
center during the holiday season. They will be moving in to the space where 
Linens and Things was located. They have worked diligently to find the perfect fit 
that would work well with the center and meet the needs of the community. He 
said that they will compliment the Mall and the community in a great way. 

 
 Ms. Bristol said that they worked very closely with Westcor on that premier space 

and it is a big part of the City’s program. 
 



Prescott City Council 
Special Meeting of August 25, 2009                Page 2 
 
 Mr. Norwood asked if they had not originally planned to be locating in Prescott 

Valley. Mr. Steinbrook said that the deal started before he came on board and he 
is not familiar with the expectations before, but he knows that they had a good 
relationship with Bed, Bath and Beyond as a company, both as Westcor and their 
parent company, and they fit the needs 

 
 Mr. Norwood asked if he had an idea on the range of their annual sales. 

Mr. Steinbrook said that he could not give actual numbers; he would need to 
direct them to Bed, Bath and Beyond directly. 

 
 Councilman Lamerson thanked him for working so diligently to recognize, 

especially in these economic times, something that will be a benefit to the 
community, and he thanked the business for investing in the community. 

 
 Mayor Wilson said that the Council as a whole feels the same sentiment and 

wishes them the best of luck. 
 
 Ms. Bristol said that the other announcement was regarding Wolfsburg 

Electronics at the Airport. They have been here quite awhile, and their parent 
company is named Cobham and they are headquartered in the United Kingdom. 
They are a global company with many products around the world and avionics is 
a small part of it. 

 
 She said that they have announced that they have closed two plants on the West 

Coast, in Seattle and Portland, and they will be moving and/or creating about 50 
jobs here at their Prescott facility, which is great news for the community. She 
said that they would be high paying jobs. She then showed a brief video that 
describes the Cobham family. 

    
 She said that here to talk a little about the local operation was Brian Chambers, 

Operations Manager. 
 
 Mr. Chambers said that Wolfsburg has been in Prescott for years, originally 

under other names, and has been owned by Cobham since about 1997. He said 
that they have always been Cobham but they have for the most part been a 
holding company for about 30-40 companies worldwide. He said that they were 
part of the avionics and surveillance division. Cobham is about a $2 billion 
company traded on the London Stock Exchange. Wolfsburg is a manufacturer of 
tactical communication products for the US Coast Guard and Homeland Security. 
They are also a manufacturer of navigation and communication products for the 
business and commercial aviation industry. 

 
 He said that over the past six months they decided to migrate most of the 

manufacturing out of the Northern Airborne Technology facilities in 
British Columbia and all of that manufacturing will be moved to the Prescott site 
at the end of next month, so they have added 15-20 positions with that effort. 



Prescott City Council 
Special Meeting of August 25, 2009                Page 3 
 
 
 He said that about three weeks ago a decision was made to close down the sites 

at Seattle and between now and the year’s end they will relocate to Prescott. The 
other facility in Aurora, Oregon with about 110 employees, will relocate between 
now and end of the first quarter of next year. 

 
 In summary, he said that they would be looking at anywhere from 20-70 new 

employee positions being created at the Prescott site. Most of the manufacturing 
that is occurring in the Aurora site is being looked at for outsourcing to a global 
contractor. Depending on what happens with that, they may not incorporate as 
many of the manufacturing resources. 

    
 Mayor Wilson asked why type of education support would be needed for the jobs 

they would be bringing. Mr. Chambers said that they will be requiring a lot of 
engineers, depending on how many they are able to relocate. He said that it was 
difficult to relocate from Seattle to Prescott. They would be looking for four-year 
degreed engineers. They have had a lot of difficulty recruiting engineers, even 
out of Phoenix, a lot of which is because of what they can pay. They will be 
looking for engineers, sales people, both account managers and sales 
coordinators. He said that they have more resumes than needed for the 
manufacturing end. 

    
 Mayor Wilson said that they may be more successful in recruiting from Southern 

California since people are getting tired of that area. Mr. Chambers said that they 
do not expect Portland to not be as difficult in relocating because they have more 
employees. 

 
 From a business perspective, one of the main reasons that they are 

consolidating is their attempt to create a center of excellence for the avionics 
group in Prescott. They have businesses that have really been competing in the 
past and it is difficult to try and get the engineers and sales people together. He 
said that from an operations perspective, avionics has taken a huge hit. The 
order books have take a huge hit as well, but they expect that to come back in 
the next year or two and they want to be prepared to deal with it. 

    
 Councilman Lamerson thanked Mr. Chambers and the company for who they are 

and what they do, in the name of freedom throughout the world and thanked 
them for making Prescott part of their endeavor. He said that they are accepted 
very well and he wished them well. 

    
 Councilwoman Suttles thanked Ms. Bristol for a great presentation and she 

agreed with Councilman Lamerson that it was a shot in the arm with both 
companies coming to Prescott. 

 
 
    



Prescott City Council 
Special Meeting of August 25, 2009                Page 4 
 
 Mr. Chambers said that any help they could provide in recruiting would be 

appreciated. Mayor Wilson said that they would provide everything then can 
within the bounds of legality. He said that they also have contacts at the 
university level and anything they need help with, they should call Ms. Bristol as 
she is the City’s point person. 

 
IV. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business to be discussed, the Special Meeting of the 
Prescott City Council of August 25, 2009, adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _______________________________  
       Jack D. Wilson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk 


